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Maureen O'Gara

Poge 2 Page 4
) 1 O'Gara
2 2 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We are now
3 March 23, 2007 3 on the record. This Is the video
4 11:00a.m. 4 operator speaking, Robert Calvert, of
5 Rostyn, New York 5 Esquire Deposition Services, offices
6 6 located at 216 East 45th Street, New
7 7 York, New York.
8 DEPOSITION of MAUREEN O'GARA held | 8 Today's date is March 23, 2007.
g  at the Roslyn Claremont Hotel, 1221 OId 9 The time on the video monitor is 11:24
10 Norhem Boulevard, Roslyn, New York, 10 am. :
11 Pursuant o Subpoena, belore Joan Urzla, a 1t Wae are here at the Roslyn -
12 Notary Public of the State ot New York. 12 Claremont Hotel, located at 1221 Old
13 13 Northem Boulevard, Roslyn, New York
14 14 to take the videotaped deposition of
15 15  Maureen O'Gara in the maliler of the
16 16 SCO Group Incorporated, a Delaware
17 17 corporation versus Novel}
18 18 Incorporated, a Defaware corporation.
19 19 The venue of this case is the
20 20 United States District Courtfor the
21 21 District of Utah, Central Division.
22 22 The index number is 2:04-Cv-00139.
23 23 Will counsel please voica
24 24 idenlify yourselves and stale whom you
25 25 represent.
Page 3 Page5
1 1 O'Gara
2 APPEARANCES: 2 MR. GONZALEZ: Mauriclo Gonzalez
3 3 of Boies Schiller & Flexner for
4 : 4 plaintifis the SCO Group.
5 DAVIS WRIGHT TREMAINE, LLP 5 MA. JACOBS: Michael Jacobs from.
6 Atomey for The Witness 6 Morrison & Foerster for defendant
7 1633 Broadway 7 Noveli. )
8 New York, New York 10019 8 MS. FOLEY: Carolyn Foley from
{ 9 BY: CAROLYNFOLEY, ESQ. 9 Davis Wright Tremalne for the witpess
:(‘) 10 Maureen O'Gara. .
11 Before we star, I'd just like
:g ?\%Ense' i%:"[;"ﬁg; FLEXNER, LLP 12 10 make & slalement on the fecord,
14 3%3 Main Street 13 which is that the witness is here
15 Armonk, New York 10504 14 pursuani to subpoena, but she has
16 BY:  MAURICIO GONZALEZ, ESQ. 15 nolitied the SCO Group, the parly
17 16 issuing tha subpoena, that she is
18 17 asserling the Reporters Privilege.
19 MORRISON & FOERSTER, LLP 18 We have been convinced that the
20 Atormeys for Delendant 19 Reporters Piivilege has been overcome
21 425 Marke! Street 20 with regard 1o a cerlain conversation
22 San Francisco, California 94105 21 and that will be the inquisition-or
23 B8BY:  MICHAEL A. JACOBS, ESQ. 22 the inguiry today will be limiled lo,
24 23 al leas! as far as sources will be
25 ALSO PRESENT: 24 lisnited to that conversation, and we
25 Bob Galvest, Videographer 25 will assen the privilege as to any
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Mauxjeen O'Gara

Page 6 Page 8
1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara
2 other, as appropriate in any other 2 thatlworkor a company called G2
3 instance. . \ 3 Computer intelligence which has sevesal
4 MR. GONZALEZ: Thank you, 4  publications which I'm connected with, and
5 Ms. Foley. We appreciate that. 5 one of them Is Client Server Nows.
6. . 6 Q  And in 2003 what pubfication did
7 MAUBEEN O'GARA calledasa 7  you wrlie for? _
8 witness, having affirmed to teslify 8 A  That same publication.
9 truthfully before a Notary Public, g Q Is thal an on-line publication
10 was axamined and testified as 10  ora print, hard print?
11 follows: i1 A 11 was at the time both print
12 12 and on-tine, On-line Insofer as it was
13 EXAMINATION BY 13 e-malled to its subscribers.
14 MR.GONZALEZ: 14 Q 1t you can think back to the
15 Q Good morning, Ms. O'Gara. 15 -early part of 2003, what subjects did you
16 A Good morning. 16 generally cover within the comptter
17 Q  Pleass let me know il I need to 17  industry? : )
18 clarify or restale any of my queslions 18 A Well, we were covering, we
19 today. 19 divide the world up Into operating systems.
20 A Okay. 20  So we were following at the me NT and
21 Q s that okay? 21 Lhux
22 Have you ever besn deposed 22 Q Are you aware that Novell has
23 before? : 23 issued an announcement claiming that Novell
24 A Yes. 24 and not SCO owns the UNIX copyrights?
25 Q Have you been deposed in this 25 A Yes.
Page 7 Page 9
1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara
2 casa? 2 Q Do you recali that that
3 A No. 3 announcement was first made on or atound
4 Q Se In your experience In other 4 May 28, 20037
5 depositions do you have a sense of how this | 5 MAR. JACOBS: Objection.
6  will procoed generally? 6 Leading. _
7 A Yes. 7 Q You can answer the question.
8 Q Greal 8 A Yes.
9 What do you currently do for a g Q You do have a recollection --
110 lving? 10 A Yes.
11 A Imajournalist. - 1 Q --olthat?
12 Q Andhow long have you been 12 And do you recall wilting about
13  journalist? ) 13 that announcement?
14 A  Since about 1972, 14 A Yes,
15 Q Doyou cover a cerlain 15 Q I'd like to show you a document
16  particular industry? 16 thal will be marked as Exhibit 1080.
17 A Yes, ) cover the computer 17 {Whereupon, Exhibit 1080 was
18 industry. 1B marked Jor ldentification.)
19 Q And how long have you been 19 Q I's been bate stamped at the
20  covering the computer industry? 20 bottom SGO 1270695 and it runs in sequence
21 A Since1972. 21 through SCO 1270700.
22 Q What publication do you 22 it's a document that contains an
23  cumently work fos? 123 arlicie entited Novell 1o Try to Shool
24 A [workfor a publication called 24 Down SCOIP claims, by Maureen O'Gara.
25  Client Server News, or t should really say 25 Do you see thal article within

3(Pages6109)
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Maureen O'Gama

) ’ Page 10 Page 12
1 O'Gara 1 _O'Gara
2  this document? 2 Q Anddid he say anything about
3 A Yes, ldo. 3 the effoct, the Intended effect of the
4 Q Does that appear to be the 4. announcement on that date?
5 documen in which we were just talking 5 A Thereason that they were doing
6 about in which you wrote about Novell's 6 it, as} understood it, was to confound
7 announcement about iis alleged ownership of | 7 SCO’s stock position.
8 UNIX copyrights? 8 Q When you say confound SCO's
9 A’ Yes. g  stock position, can you be & iitie more
10 Q And whal is the date of the 10 specific or can you clarily it in any way?
13 anicle? 11 A . Well, Lthink the object of the
12 A W'sdated May 28. 12 game was 10 throw a monkey wrench into the
13 Q Is that consistent with your 13  works.
14 recollection of the arlicle and the 14 Q And can you explain that, that
15 announcement? 15 metaphor, a litile further?
16 A Yes. 18 MS. FOLEY: I'm going lo object
17 Q Great. 17 1o the form of the question.
i8 Belore you published this 18 Do you wnderstand?
19 article, did you speak with Novell? 19 Q  Well, when you say that they .
20 A Yes. 20  were trying to confound or throw a monkey
21 Q  Did you speak with someone named 21  wrench, cap you explain that?
22 Chris Sione of Novell? 22 A They were trying to upset the
23 A Yes. 23  stock price.
24 Q And what was Mr. Stone’s 24 Q And when you say stock psice,
25 position at Novell at the time? 25  whose stock price are you referring to?
Page 1 - Page 13
1 O'Gara . 1 ) O'Gara
2 A I believe he was vice chalrman. 2 A SCO's.
3 Q Would it be sale 1o say thal you 3 Q Did Mr. Slone say anything about
4  understood him 1o be a senior executive 4  bharming SCO? .
6 under whatever title he may have had? 5 MR. JACOBS: Objsction.
6 A Yes. , 6 Leading.
7 Q And what did Mr. Novel teft 7 A Dolanswerthat then?
8  you- _ 8 Q Yes, youmay.
8 A Mr. Store. g A Logically, there wouldn't be any
10 Q I'msorry, thank you. 10 other reason.
11 What did Mr. Stone tell you 11 Q So you understood that to be the
12 about Noveill's public announcement in which {12 intent?
13 i was going lo asseit its purported 13 A That's what | understood.
14 ownership of the UNIX copyrights? 14 Q it we may go back o Exhibit
15 A Well, he informed me of the 15 1080, the article that you wrote on May 28,
16 substance of what this story is abouy, that 16 2003 --
17 ,they were going to, what's the right word, 17 A Actually, 1 wrote It the night
18 assert thelr ownership. 18 before.
19 Q  Did he say anything about the 19 Q  And published it on May 28,
20 reasons why they werte issuing thal 20 2003, is that accurale?
21 announcement on that date? 21 A Thal's accurate.
22 A Yes, be did. 22 Q Thank you.
23 Q And what did he say? 23 Do you réecall -
24 A He sald they were dolng it 24 A 1don't get up at 8:15 in the
25 because SCO's earnings were that day. 25  morning and put these things out.
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Maureen O’Gara

. Page 14 Page 16
1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara
2 _ Q Doyouknow if there's any 2 Q Is it your practice to take
3 reference to your conversation with 3 noles as you're talking with sources?
4 Mr. Stone that we've besn latking about in 4 A My notes are more In the way of
5 thisanicle? 5 just phrases.
6 A Yes, I do,inthe third 6 Q Phrases that people say 10 you?
7 paragraph. 7 A Yesh.
8 Q Okay.. 8 Q So you can capture the words
9 A itbegins, "The letter which — 9 theyused?
10 Q You can go ahead and read that 10 A Right.
11 inlo the record. L} Q What do you recall of the exact
12 "A  Isthat all sight? 12 words Mr. Stone used wihh you in reporiing
13 Q Yeah. 13 1o you the planned announcement?
14 A "The letter which Novell is 14 A  lcen't.
15  supposed to posi to its website today sight | 15 Q Wers you on the phone?
16 before SCO reporis its quanterly resuits.” | 16 A With him?
17 Q Canyoucontinue? 17 Q Yes.
18 A - "Says that Novell owns the IP 18 A Yes.
19  and that SCO'merely shares I centain 19 Q What phone were you on?
20 rights that it acquired from Novell by way | 20 A What do you mean?
21 of the original SCO, the old Santa Cruz 21 Q Were you on a house phone, do
22 operation” - 122 you have a cell phone?
23 Q And did you write that paragraph 23 A Oh, 1 was on a standard land
24 as part of this anlicle? 24  line.
25 A Yes 25 Q And where was that land line
Page 15 Page 17
1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara
2 Q And again, as you sit here 2 located?
3 today, is it your understanding that that 3 A Inmy office.
4  reflects your conversation with Mr. Stone? | 4 Q  And where is that olfice?
5 MR. JACOBS: Objection. L3 A That office was at 323 Sea Clift
6 Leading. 6 Avenue in Sea Chff.
7 Q Does that refiect your 7 G What was the phone number you
8  conversation with Mr. Stone? 8  wers calling him from?
9 A Yes. 19 MR. GONZALEZ: Objection.
10 Q The same conversation you just 10 A Dol answer \hat question?
11 testified about? 11 My telephone number was
12 A Yes. . 12 516-759-7025. That's the main number.
13 MR. GONZALEZ: Thank you. | 13 But there are a number of lines on that
14 have nothing further. 14 and It's a roliover kind of thing, and so
15 15 1would never know what fine | was on,
16 EXAMINATION BY 16  whether It was an incoming cali or an
17 BY MR. JACOBS: 17  outgoingcall.
18 Q Ms. O'Gara, do you have any 18 Q  So are you saying as to this
19 notes of your conversation with Mr. Stone? | 19 conversation with Chris Stone you don't
20 A No. 120  recall whether # was incoming or outgoing?
23 Q Did you have noles al one point? {21 A That's correct.
22 A Peshaps. 22 Q Did you have an undesstanding
23 Q Why do you say perhaps? 123  whete Mr. Stone was purporiedly calling you
24 A Becauseldont clearly 124 trom during this cali?
25 remember. 25

A} beg your pardon?

5 {Pages 14 {0 17)
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Maureen O'Gara

Page 18 Page 20
1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara
2 Q Did you have an understanding 2 little bit on that, on what your {ake away
3  where Mr. Stone was during this phone call? | 3  was versus whal he actually said. -
4 A 1Dbelieve he was in the Novell 4 MR. GONZALEZ: Objeclion.
5 offices. 5 Q Did he say o you anything more
& Q  Just back to 323 Sea Ciff 8 1han -- with respect 10 the issue of SCO's
7  Avenus, is that a personal office of yours 7 announcement, did he slimply draw your
8 or anollice of G27 : 8 atiention o the facl?
‘9 A Rt was G2 Computer Intelligence 9 A To SCO's announcement?
10  was the, what do you call it, the tenant. 10 Q Yes.
11 Q Is G2 your company? 11 A Younean their eamings repont?
12 A Yes. 12 Q Correct.
13 Q Sobut the entity that -- well, 13 A Ohnay. .
14 iet e stant over again. 14 Q Did he say anything more than
15 Would the phone line be in the 15 S5GCOis supposed 10 repod its quarerly
16 name of Maureen O'Gara, or would it be in 16 results on May 28th?
17 ihe name of G2? i7 A He led ma 10 undérstand that the
i8 A G2 - 18 reason that they were doing it on the 28th,
19 Q You don't recall the exact words 10 that they were posting thelr cease and
20  Mr. Stone used. What is your best 20 desist letter wae because SCO was, had its
21 recolleclion of what he said 1o you In the 21 eamings report.
22 paricular conversation you were recalling 22 Q Sol understand you to be saying
23 for Mr. Gonzalez? 23 that he led you to understand something,
24 A To best answer that question, 24 butlneedto -
25 ¥d have to explain that most business 25 A Hesald -
. Page 19 Page 21
1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara
2 journalists are not that aware surprisingly 2 Q You'rs onloil. 'mrying to
3 enough of the market, all right? You have 3 figure out whal you took away from it
4 toremind yourself that theve §s sucha 4  versus whal he actvally said 1o you.
5 thing as the stock market, all right? 5 A There was no lack of clarity.
6 Maybe the guys at Barons are ditfersnt, but 6 There was no lack of clarity, sir.
7 mostof us aren'l, you know, that's not a 7 Q Well, then what was clear in
8 hypersensilivity. And Chris drew my 8 whalt he, in his words versus what you took
9 aftiention to-the fact that there was, that 9 away trom it7
10 SCO was supposed to report is numbers on | 10 A He was saying to me that the
11 Wednesday, the 28th, snd that’s why this 11 reason that they were doing this wes
12 ~ phrasing in here even sppears. Otherwise, |12 because of SCO's eaming report. 'm
13 1 would never have made the connection. He |13 sofry, you know, it's just, thal's just the
14 was the one who drow my stiention to the 14  wayflis. ’
15 fact that Novell is supposed o posi to its 15 Q You don't have 1o apologize to
16  website loday right before SCO reports its 16 me. 1just want your truthiul testimony
17  quarterly results. That's the burden of 17 under oath here so that the record is
18  what he told me. 18 clear.
19 Q  When you wers responding 1o 19 A Hight. it's not — okay, go
20 questions trom SCO’s counsel, it seemed to 20 ahead. _
21 me you were being careful to distinguish 21 Q And so my question to you is, is
22  between what Mr. Stone said to you and what | 22 it your 1estimony under oath that Mr. Stone
23 you infewred from what he sald, or what you 23 . conveyed lo you in words that the reason
24 undersiood the purporito be. So with that 24  Novell was doing this announcement on the
25  distinction in mind, fet me follow up a 25 date it was dolng it was so it would be
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Maunreen O'Gara

Page 22 Poge 24
11 O'Gara 1 O'Gara
2  coincident with SCO's report of ils 2 anhnouncement; and three, he chorlled?
3 quarierly resulls? 3 MS.FOLEY: Oblectto the fom
4 MS. FOLEY: I'm going to object 4 of the question. The transcript will
5 1o that as asked and answered, and 5 speak for tself. -
6 I'll 1et you answer again. 6 A lthink there's a step missing
7 A  Yes. ) 7 Inthere, sir —
- 8 Q  And whal words or substance of 8 Q Please. |
g  the conversation do you precisely recall 9 A - if 'm not mistaken.
10 him using In order for him 1o convey that 10 Q You want me to read back what i
11 as opposed to you lo infer it? 11 sald?
12 MS. FOLEY: Object to ths form 12 A Whydon't you.
13 ol the question. Asked and answered. 13 Q Let me see if | have accuralely
14 Q You can answer. 14 caplured the back and forth over the last
15 A )still answer? 15  few minutes. I'm goingto redo it a little
16 Q Please. 16  bit better now that | can see the way 1 did
17 A Maybe it was the laughter that | 17 #. One, Mr. Stone —
18 remember most aboutit. 18 A You getioimprove, is that
19 Q Allsght. So tell me about 18 fair?
20 that 20 Q Yes,andyoudoloo. Lifeis
21 A Well, he basically — | just — 21  about improvement.
22  maybe the right way to characlerize it was |22 One, ¥ir. Stona said to you we
23 chortled. 23 are relsasing a statement about ownership
24 Q And what do you recall of the 24  of the UNIX copyrights; two, Mr. Stone drew
25 chortling? 25  your attenfion to the facl that SCO was
Page 23 Page 25
1 O'Gara 1 O'Garma
2 A That was at the end of our 2 reportting s quarierly results the next
3 conversation. It was shortly alter wehung | 3 day; and three, Mr. Stone chotlled.
4 up. lthink we had been onthe phone fora | 4 A Okay. There is an absence of
& little bit of time going through all of 5 causality in there.
.6 1his. He explained to me, and that’s why 6 Q You've put your linger on my
7 R appears inthis story, that the 7 question.
8 . coincidence appears in this story because | 8 A Allright. So there's the step
8 he drew my attention to it. S  that’s left out is that there was a
10 Q And did — so | think we have 10 connecltion between step A and step B.
11 chortling at the end of the conversation? 11 Q ‘And my question Is what did
12 A Uh-huh, about that. it wasn't, 12 Ms. Stone say thal specifically identified
13  you lowow, Jike — it was sbout the fact 13 that conneclion as opposed 1o you inlersing
14 that they were putting out thelr statement {14  from the -~
15  onthat day. That was what the laughler 15 A I'm sorry, I'm not inferting,
18 was about. 16  all right? 1don’l remember the exact
17 Q So lel me see if I've accurately 17  words, bul it wasn't an inference. it was
18 captured the back and forth over the Jast 18 astatement | would only be puiting words
19 few minutes. 19 in his mouth, } can’t remember it, the
20 A Ohkay. 20 exact words, but the meaning was quile
21 Q M. Stone said o you, one, 21 clear. '
22  we're releasing this statement about 22 Q Well, let me ask you this, if
23  ownesship of the UNIX copyrights; two, SCO |23 you Yook at your -
24  is posting, #t Is reporiing its quarterly 24 A Anrticle?
25 resulls on the same day as our 25 Q Asicle, thank you, on May 28,
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Maureen O'Gara

. Page 26 Page 28
] O'Gara 1 O’Gara
2 2003, Exhibit 1080. 2 for that statement from its public
3 A Yes. 3 relations people, as a lever to get that
4 Q hticoks to me that the way you 4  siatement]repeated what Stone hed said
5 reportedit, 1o use the terminologyyouand | 5 tome. .
8 1have siarled to adopt here -- 6 Q What exactly did you state when
7 A Yes. 7 you repeated what Slone had said 1o you?
8 Q - you reporied one and two, but 8 A Whatever hls exact words were at
9 not causality? 9 thetime. I'm somy. »
10 A Right. 10 Q Were you reading from notes?
11 Q Do you agree with that? 11 A | don't think you had to because
12 A Yes. 12 #twas just a sentence.
13 Q Why is that? 13 Q  Your best recollection is you
14 A ldidn't know what to do with 14  had no notes?
15 it, quite trankly, and the story wasn't 15 A No, | have notes, but you know,
16 about —from my point of viewthe story [16  they're not understandable, they're not
17 wasn’t about that. 17 notes like tull sentences, they're not
18 Q And why is that? ) 18  verbatim everything. 1f I took shorthand,
19 A “Because I'm not a lawyer. 19 you'd be handy to have sround.
20 Q You saw-no news value in a 20 Q Do you have those shorthand
21 statement to you by a Novell executive that |21 noles still?
22  conveyed 1o you that the reason Novell was | 22 A No, 1 don’t do shorthand.
23 releasing its stalement on a particular 23 Q 1 used the word inadvisably,
24  dale was because SCO was reporting its 24  You're being more precise than ! am.
25 quarterly results thal same date? 25 A Yes, yes.
Page 27 Page 29
1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara
2 A - 1 know that that seems in 2 Q Do you have the notes of the
3 isolation like that should be really 3 short phrases still?
4 imporiant, okay, but there were so many 4 A No.
& Issues inthis very complicated matter that 5 Q Whatis your practice of the
6 that would make a great sidebar or o © shon phrases, if you will, in tenmns of
7  follow-up maybe, but we were 1alking about 7  whether you kesp them or not?
8 something else in this story and | 8 A 1throw everything out.
9 thought -1 didn't know where it was all 9 Q  When do you do that?
10 going to go, and I've known Chris a fon 10 A )f not when the story is
1t time. Somstimes ) get protective. - 11 written, then every week, and I've been
12 Q Did you subsequently convey to 12 doing that since 1972.
13 someone at SCO that you had heard from 13 Q  When you conferred with the
14 Chris Stone that the reason Novell had 14 public relations people at SCO, first of
15 issued its statlement that day was because 15  all, ware you conferring with Biake
16 SCO -- was to time it with the eamnings 16 Stowell?
17 announcemenm? 17 A Conlerring? 1 dont conler with
18 A Asfar as ) remember, and 18 the PR people. |called Blake Stowell,
19 according to the evidence in front of me 19 yes,
20  here, we were breaking this news. Okay? 20 Q What did you mean, why did you
21 In the normal course of 21 object to the word confes?
22  reporting, | went back to the other guy, 22 A 1{ind it difficutt to use that
23 being SCO, who as for as | know didn't know {23 verb, when I'm taliing sbout a flak, no.
24  anything about this, for a statement. 24 You don't have conferences with PR people.
25 Dwring the course of my asking 25 Q  You called him up, you told
L
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Maureen O'Gara

Page 30 Page 32

1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara

2 him- . 2  the part of Mr. Stowell 10 give me a

3 A From the same phone  {alked 10 3 reaction tothal, | pushed turther and used

4 Chrison. ; 4  the expressions that Stone had sald o me,

5 Q You told him what Chiis had said 5 and the substance of which is that the

6 1o you and you asked him whether he headany | 6 reason that they were dolng it lomorrow was

7 comment? 7 because you're going to have your earnings

8 A’ No. 1told, | caid to them what g8 call _

9 1 knew, which is the substance of this 9 Q And you're confident as you sit
10 story, that the next day that they were 10 here today, it's 4 years later, that you
11 going to issue this cease and desist 11 didn't embellish on what Mr. Stone had said
12 letter, and in order o get a statement 12 10 you?

13 from SCO as a levet, | threw In what Chris 13 A No.

14 had said. t wesn't as scandalous to me as 14 Q In order to elicit comment from

15 aregulerbusinessreporter thanithas 15 M. Stowell?

16 bscome under these circumsiances. Doyou | 16 A No, absolutely not.

17  understand what § mean? 17 Q You're not confident, or you're

18 Q' Pmirying to figure out which 18 confident you did not?

19 of the -- | think setting aside the 19 A 1amabsolutely confident that 1

20 chortling tar a minute, we've tatked about 20 it not. That would be a fie.

21 three components again, the fact of the 21 Q Would you regard that as a

22 date of the planned Issuance of the Novell 22 bssach of your elhics as a journalis\?

23 statemeni, the fact of the date of the SCO 23 A Absolutely.

24 eamings releass and the causal 24 Q t's sort of like

25 relationship between one and two. 25 cross-examining a witness when you don't
. Page 31 Page 33

1 O'Gara 3 O'Gara

2 A Uhhuh, 2 have a basis for the cross-exarnination?

3 Q  And I'm trying to figure out il 3 A Yesh, youguys can doit, but}

4  youtold SCO one, one and two, oronetwo -| 4  can't

5 andthree. ' ) 5 Q Waecan'teither.

6 A H!remember my one, two and 6 So with that in mind, how woukd

7 three coirectly, the answerisone,twoand | 7  you describe your relationship with

8 thres. .8 Mr. Stowell?

9 Q  Sothen I'li say that in sore 9 A Asnormal. _
10 coloquial terms, you conveyed to Blake: 10 Q What does normal mean to you?
11 Stowel that Chris Stone had said to you -- 11 A Al press agents are wary of
12 A Did1do something with your 12 somebody ke me. So It's ke constantly,
13 wire? Excuse me. Sorry. | moved. 13 it's like cats, you know, or dogs sniifing
14 Q  You conveyed to Blake Stowelt 14 each olber oul constanily. Youmight know
15 that Chris Stone had sald to you that 15  that dog, but you know, you're not
16  Novell was Issuing its statement in order 16 absohntely, you're never friends with
17 1o time its release with SCO's report of 17 that — you know, you don't have friends,
18 ils earnings? 18  Joumalisis dos’t have friends, but you
19 A Among the many things — the 19 have people that you deal with all the
20 substance of the statement seemedtotake {20 time.

21 priority under these, In my world the 21 Q Did you have the impression that
22  substance of the statement was the primary | 22 = Mr. Stowoll regarded you as an afly in the
23 tact. | was Wrylng to get a yeaction o 23 S8CO--

24 that. 24 A Never, no.

25 Then when | noticed hesitancy on 25 Q Did you convey 10 Mr. Stowelt at

9 (Pages 30 1033)

Esquire Deposition Services
1-800-944-9454

10031



Maureen O’Gara

Page 34

. Page 36
1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara
2  any time that you took — let me stant over 2 190. )
3 again , 3 {Whereupon, Exhibit 180 was
4 How did you view the SCO versus 4 marked for identification.)
5 1BM SCO versus Novell dispute as it was 5 MR. JACOBS: 190 is an e-mail
§ brewing in the spring and summer of 20037 | 6 string with the date on the top of
7 A Asagood story. 7 July 20, 2004. Soit's after the
8 Q Dld you believe that you were 8 period you and | were talking about
8 taking a pasticutar sids In thal story? 9 before. R's produced by SCO at
10 A lhave no side. 10 1648756 1o 759.
" Q  Did you understand that people 11 A Yeah. So?
12 thought you were taking sides during that | 12 Q Sothis Is a string of messages
13 period? 13 that you forwarded to SCO, correct?
14 A lthink that my stories stand 14 A 1don't, | don't know. .
15 for that. 1 think that —~ I would refer 15 Q Well, do you see the s-mall at
16 youto my stories. 1don't see any biasin |16~ .the bottom of 756 from O'Gara o Blake
17- anyof my storles. It's just acompletely |17 Stowell?
18 objective recitation of the facts. 18 .. A __1see from Frank somebody or
19 Q Somy question, though, is do 19 another to O’'Gara.
20 you think that there were, didn’t you in 20 Q And ook at the bottom of the
21 fact -- and | promise you Y won't ask youa |21 first page.
22 question unless ) have a basis for it - 22 A  Thenlsee — the botiom of the
23 didn't you, in fact, receive communications” {23  first -~ .
24  from people who thought you were taking |24 Q The string Is in raverse order.
25 SCO's side in the dispule? 26 A  Yeah, Isee. ) don't know what
Page 35 Page 37
1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara
2 A . il were to say that most 2 the contextis.
3 people can't read, would you understand | 3 MS. FOLEY: Just aclually listen
4 what | was talking about? - ) 4 to the question that he asked.
5 Q  I'm not asking you to defend 5 - THE WITNESS: Sorry.
6 yourself at this point. {16 MS. FOLEY: The question again
7 A lunderstand that. 7 was?
8 Q  I'm asking you whether, in fact, B -Q  You lorwarded an e-mait string
8  youreceived those communications. 9 . that you received io Mr. Stowell at SCO,
10 A When? What's the timing? 10 comect?
11 Q Wall, tel mo — 1 was tslling 11 A No.
12 Mauricio, again, | have a rule against 12 MS. FOLEY: The question is does
13 asking trick questions unless 1 tell you 13 the document reflect that.
14 it's a trick question. So let me show you 14 A lguessso.
15 what 'm referring to. 15 Q Well, you don't have a
16 MR. JACOBS: We have another 16 recollection?
17 deposition going on today with 17 A 1 don’t remember it, you know, |
18 Mr. Levine, so what | propose o dois 18 get lots of e-mails. So what?
19 1o skip to 0. 19 Q Well, 1 guess my question is so
20 MR. GONZALEZ: Okay. 120 what, why did you forward this string of
21 MR. JACOBS: And we'll mark this {21  o-mails from Frank Jalics, J-A-1--C-S, in
22 as 90. {22 which he accused you of being on, in'a
23 MR. GONZALEZ: Youmean 1090. |23 nutshel, on SCO’s side -
24 MR. JACOBS: No,90. Wehavea {24 A  Yesh.
25 different numbering. Let's mark it 25 Q -~ why did you forward that lo
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Page 38 Page 40
1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara.
.2 SCO under an e-mail *l want war pay*? 2 yes.
3 MR. GONZALEZ: Objection. 3 Q And it reads, "SCO needs AlX and
4 A ldon't remember the context of 4 DYNEX because It is charging IBM with
5 the thing, but ~ 5 copying AIX and DYNEX line for line into
6 MS. FOLEY: Do you remomberwhy | 6  Lnunx. itis not charging IBM with copying
7 you forwarded It? 7 UNDCline for line imo Linux. N s
8 . THE WITNESS: No. 8  charging IBM with copying derivative copy
9 Q Does it strike you as peculiar 8 #ine for line Into Linux.
that a journalist would forward to one of 10 Do you see that?
the sides in a dispute a string of e-mails 11 A Yes.
she gol froris a reader? i2 Q  So you were trying to clarify
A 1 don't imow what the right 13 jor him what you understood the dispute was
answer 10 thal gquestion i is becauseldont | $4 aboul?
know the context. 15 A Isnt that what the dispute was
. Q ° Wel, what's the con!exi here? 16  about at that ime?
A I'm probably just complaining 17 Q ¥'m not challenging thal.
about getting this kind of crap all, you 18 A Ohny.
lnow, all the time. 19 Q  I'm just characterizing what you
People who can't read and don't 20 were doing.
know what the heck is going on and gotit |21 A Right, okay,
wrong to begin with just, you know, saying | 22 & And then he goes on and again
that, you lmow, you think you've gol it 23 soit of disputes your reporting on the case
tough, Blgke, you should see it from my 24 Inhis July 20th e-mall, do you see thal?
side. That's no big deal. 25 He says, "What makes you want to
Page 39 Page 4}
O'Gara 3 O'Gara
Q SoJalics says to you In the 2 believe SCO when every time they show up to
July 19th e-mail - 3 adiflerent court or to the same courton a
A July 19, is that the beginmng? 4  difterent day their story kesps changing?
Q  I'stowards the beginning, yes. 5 When they filed the suits in the IBM case,
it's on the boltom hall of 758. 6  did you know it was primarily a contract
A July 19th, walt a second. Yeah. 7  dispute and not really about contract
About being Hillary 10 thelr Bill Clinton? 8 copyrighl infringement? When they filed
Q Yes. To be precise, he says, 9 the sult against Auto Zone, did you realize
“You take SCO's side ¥ike Hillary ook B} 10 hal it was really about thern thinking that
Clinton's side when he was being accused of { 1+ Auto Zone might have ported some static
fooling around with Monica." 12 fibraries to Linux? SCO hired some
Do you see that? 13  compslent lawyers that they are able to
A Yes. 14 convincibly argue that the moon Is made of
Q And then he goes on 1o explain 15 gieen cheess, but that doesn’t mean that
why he thinks you are belng taken in by 16 they have the svidence 1o back it up,
SCO's story. 17 Frank.*®
Do you ses that? i8 Do you see that?
A Yes. 19 A Uh-huh.
Q  And then you responded to him 20 MR. GONZALEZ: Objection to the
with a clarification of what you thougnt 21 scope.
SCO was alleging in the dispute. 22 Q  And then you forward that string
Do you see that? 23 1o Mr. Siowel and with what } Yook 1o bs
A ldon't think what they're 24 kind of a humorous remark, | went war pay.
alleging -- all right. | see my reply, 25 A  Rught
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R Page 42 Page 44
1 O'Gara . 1 O'Gara
2 Q And it was humorous? 2 oure-mall distributions in the front they
3 A Rtwas intended to be. 3 have alist of the headiines. So these are
4 Q 1aclually think it's funny, so 4 different slories. 01 18 a story with that
5 your intent came across. 5 headiine, 02 Is a story with that headline,
6 A Okay. All right. 6 03 and 04....yeah, so what?.
7 Q And then Stowell says back to 7 Q Okay.
8 you, "Keep fighting the good fight” 8 So the lead story there Is IBM
9 A Right. Q  tries non-defense defense?
10 Q Now what did you understand him 10 A  Yegh.
11 10 be saying with keep fighting the good 11 Q Against billion dollar SCO suit?
12 fight? 12 A Yeah.
13 MS. FOLEY: i you have a i3 Q And you send that to your
14 recollection of this e-mai, having 14 readers, and Blake Stowell forwards it
15 any understanding at the time. 15  internally under an e-mail to Darl McBride
16 A 1 would only be Interpreting. 1 16 the CEO of SCO, which says, "Once again,
17 don’t, you know —I'm assuming that he was | 17  Maureen Is coming through for us, we owned
18 just saying, you know, continue doing the | 18 the entire front page.”
19 kind of reporting you're used to doing, 19 Do you see that?
20 which is objective. 20 A Yeah. Sowhat?
21 Q Solel me show you ancther 21 Q So my question to you is, was
22  e-mall. We'll mark this as 191, 22 M. Stowslt working with you -
23 (Whereupon, Exhibit 191 was 23 A No. -
24 marked for ldentification.) 24 Q - to get prominent coverage for
25 Q This is one you would not have 25 the SCO IBM lawsuil?
Page 43 Page 45
1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara
2 seen before, bul 1 think it's important 2 A No, absolutely not. Absolutely
3 thatyouses. : 3 »nol. Never.
4 A Is this backwards too? 4 - Q Was Mr. Stowell doing his job in
5 Q This is backwards too. So 191 & 1rying to get good PR for SCO through you?
6 is a short stiring in which your Client 6 A No. -
7  Server News is forwarded internally at SCO.{ 7 MR, GONZALEZ: QObjection. Calls
8 And soif you go down 1o the bottom ot SCO | 8 for speculation.
9 1278156, there is your May 2, 2003 Client 9 Q No, he wasn'l doing that?
10 Seiver News. 10 A No. Blake did not do a good
11 Do you gee that? . 11 job. S
112 A Idon't know what story they're 12 Q Soyou put that story on the
13 referring to. Wait a minute. Yeah. 13 front page, but it didn't have anything to
14 Q Solf you lock al the e-mail 14 do with Blake Siowsll doing his job?
15  highlights of what looks 1o be Adobe 15 A Absolutely not.
16 Acrobat altachment, your e-mait highlight 16 Q Why did you give it front page
17  says, "Against the bachdrop of & thin JBM 17 placemen?
18 response to SCO's billion dollar suit 18 A Probably because it was the most
19 against it, SCO claims it's found line for 19  interesting thing that happened that week.
20 line plagiasism of SVRS and Linux and has {20 Q  inyour judgment?
21 renewed ils threat to pull IBM's license in 21 A 1§ get to do that, yeah.
22 six weeks.” 22 Q Soby the way. this 191, we'll
23 Do you see that? 23 jump around in time a little bit, 191 is
24 A This indicates 1o me thel this 24 May 2, 2003, so this is before the story
25 is 8 list of headlines, and some copiesof |25  that SCO asked you about in the beginning
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Page 46 Page 48

1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara _

2 part of the deposttion. This ons I'm going 2 we're all supposed to admire so much.

3 1o showyou about Is back to Oclobesr 2004. | 3~ Q' And that's whal youmeant by

4  So this will be 192. Do you have it? 4  politics?

5 A No,idont. 5 A lsn'tthat what that is?

6 (Whereupon, Exhibit 192 was 6 Q- idon't know. I'm asking you.

7 marked for Identitication.) 7 What did you mean by politics?

8 MR. JACOBS: Why don't you hold 8 A That's what | would say.

9 192 and we'll mark another one as 193. 9 Q  Fannily values?
10 {Whersupon, Exhibit 193 was 10 A Yeah.
i1 marked jor Identification.) 11 Q And what do you mean by it
12 Q So193is an e-mail string that 12 should be rewarded?
13 ends on August 11, 2003 produced by SCO | 13 A Aot ol people are ~ oh, come
14  under 143593 1o 595, 14 on, you know, 's meaningless. There's
i5 A Yeah. 15  nothing there. It's Just chatter.
16 Q And 192 is an e-mail string 16 Q Andthen he reports back, "Aaw,
17  ending October 22, 2004 ending under SGO| 17  shucks, I'm blushing now.”
18 164817310 176. Lot me ask you ebout 193 | 18 Do you see that?
19 first. ' 19 A lguess that's because t sald he
20 MS.FOLEY: Haveyouhad a 20 was cute. | call most peopie lamb chop.
21 chanee to look at it, 1837 21 Most guys think they're the only ones | say
22 A I'msomry, I'm looking here — 22 itto. I've got 2000 senior executives in
23 oh, I'm sorry, I'll looking at 192. 23 the computer industry who think they're the
24 Q That's all right. Take alock 24  only ones | calt lamb chop. Come on,
25 al 183 now. 25 honey.

Page 47 Page 49

1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara

2 A’ Yes. 2 Q  I'm feeling left out.

3 Q So 193 is an e-mail string, 3 A Let's deal with this. You laow,

4  between you and Stowell abouvtacoupleof | 4 Imean, it's a dog eat dog world out there.

5 issues, but what | want 1o focus attention 5 Q Yeah, and | think | saw alt o}

6 onis the most recent iwo e-mails in the 6 that except the focus on politics. That

7 shing. 1t seems 1o me you're joking with 7 seemed like an odd word in this context.

8  him about the subscription costs to Linux 8 A 1ldon't know. We were tatking

9 Graham and you say 'l make you a special | 9  about other kinds of things. You know, you
10 price. 10 have 1o 1alk about other subjects with
11 Do you see that? 111 people and he was probably 1elling me about
12 ‘A Uh-huh. 12 his kids and, you know, locsl schoo)
13 Q And thal's on August 11, 2003, 13 election or whatever. it's -
14 do you ses that? : 14 Q So this was just chatter?
15 A Ubh-huh. 15 A Thisis just chatter. Thisis
16 Q And then you again, | think in 16 southern bell kind of chit cat, you know,
17  humor -- Il accepl it as in humor -- you 17  just keep talking and maybe you'lt get what
18 say "you're so cute” and then you say "and | 18 you want, whatever it is.
19  your potliics are sensible and should be 19 Q Sothenon 192, Dean Zimmeman
20 rewarded.” 1didn" see the humor in thal. 20 at SCO writes to Blake Stowell and wiiles,
21 1 was wondering what you meanl by it. 21 "Amlimpressed you aclually gol Maureen
22 A He's a mormon. 22 O'Gara o say something that was, well,
23 Q And thersfore? 23 nice about SCO."
24 A Hhas atendency to have like, 24 Do you see that?
25  you know, those kindS of family values that | 25 A Yes, ido.
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Page 50 Page 52

1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara

2 Q And Stowell says, "l just killed 2 oraround March 21, 2003 --

3 her with kindness and charm.* 3 A Whiitasecond. :

4 A - Yes, and | Just imagine that's 4 MS. FOLEY: Why don't you take a

5 chitchattoo. ) 5 moment 1o read Exhibit 195.

6 Q That's your Interpretation? 6 A Why don't | read 194 first.

7. A Yeah. 7 MS. FOLEY: Okay.

8 . MR. JACOBS: -We've been going 8 MR. GONZALEZ: Just to clasily,

9 about an hour and 15. ¢'d ke lo 9 t want to object 1o the form of the
10 give you a break and take a quick 10 last question of Mr. Jacobs as well as
11 break. |think we can finish up by 11 his characterization of Exhibit 194.

12 1:00 il we take no more than a 5 or 10 i2 A Does the last paragraph of —

13 minute break. : 13 MS. FOLEY: Actually, have you

14 MR. GONZALEZ: Youmeaniniotal |14 finished reading?

15 or just your part? 15 THE WITMESS: Yes.

16 {Discussion held off the 16 MS. FOLEY: Then you'll answer

17 record.) 17 questions, but £'m going lo state for

18 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We are going | 18 the record beforehand that this now

19 off the.record. The time is 12:20. 19 seems to be getting beyond the

20 {Recess taken 12:20 p.m.} 20 articles that were given to us before

21 THE VIDEOGBAPHER: We are now 21 the deposition to consider for

22 back on the recerd. The time is 22 privilege grounds.

23 12:38. 23 I don't know exactly where you

24 BY MR. JACOBS: 24 intend to go or whal guestions you

25 Q Ms. O'Gara, I'd iike to show you 25 intend to ask, and it may or may not
Page 51 Page 53

1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara

2  what we'll mark as 194 and 195. 2 raise privilege issues.

3 {Whereupon, Exhibits 194 and-195 3 So I'm golng 10 let you ask the

4 werte marked for ldentification.) 4 questions and then maybe either we'll

5 Q  194is a copy of an arlicle from 5 have a convérsation either on or of{

6 Linux Graham, SCO's lawyer speaks, says- 6 the record it it does start {o ralse

7  nothing. Doyou ses that? 7 privilege issues.

8 A Yep. _ 8 Q Aclually on thal point, you had"

9 Q s that an article you wrote? 8 communications direclly or through your
10 A Yes, 10 counse! with counsel for SCO betore the
1 Q And 195 Is a declaration of Mark 11 deposition?.

12 Heise inthe SCO v. IBM case dated November | 12 A Could you repeat that question?
13 7,2006. . . 13 (Record read)

14 in 194 you sald that you had a 14 A Yes.

15 conversatlon with Mr. Heise and that he 15 Q You met with counsel for SCO?
16 said thal while SCO's -- you said that he 16 A No. )

17  said that while SCO's claims have substance |17 Q You didn't meet in the lobby of

18 andthatitisn'l proposingiogoona . 18 this hotel with counsel for SCO?

19 iishing discovery expedition, SCO doesn't 19 A Oh, 1 beg your pardon. |

20 want IBM to know what they are. 120 thoug you meant before 1oday, ) guess
21 Do you see that? 21 the answer would be yes.

22 A  VYes,ido. - 22 Q - Did you discuss the substance of
23 MR. GONZALEZ: Objeclion. 23  your testimony today?

24 Q Andthen Mr. Heise submits his 24 A Wediscussed the First Amendment
25 declaration saying that he spoke o you on 25 and we discussed the questions that he
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PageHA |l - Page 56
1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara
2  would ask me. 2 shell with him?
. 3 Q Did you discuss the answers you 3. A No. :
4  would give? 4 Q And Mr. Stone didnt use the
5 A }wouldn't cheracterize it that 5  word bomb shell with you?
6 way, no. 6 A No.
7 Q What did you convey from your 7 Q Bomb shell is your
8 side? 8 characterization loday?
9 A What did | convey, you mean what 9 A Right. But that's what it was
10 did I say? 10 intended tobe. :
11 Q Uh-huh " Q That's the way you understood
12 A Thatit was my understanding 12 i?
13 that we were going to talk about this story |13 A No, that is the way the wotld
14  that| wrote on May 28th, 2003 and that my 14 was supposed to understand i, because it
15 conversation with Mr. Stone was reflected {15 isabomb shell, sir.
16 in paragraph 3. , B L] Q Inyour judgment?
17 Q Did you discuss with him the 17 A  No. Wsafacl ltsnota
18  question of whether Mr. Stone conveyed 18 judgment Wsalfact.
19 anything more to you than was carried, that {19 Q Has anyone else validated that
20 was contained in paragraph 3 of Exhibit 20 fact other than yourself?
21 10807 21 A  Wewouldn'tall be heroif it
22 THE WITNESS: Could you repeat 22 wasn’t »
23 that, please? 23 Q I you look at 194 and 195 -
24 (Becord read) 24 A  Yes. ]
25 A Wediscussed the meaning of 25 Q Mr. Heise Is a lawyer for SCO
Page 55 Page 57
1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara
2 paragraph 3. 2 and he's critiquing this article, in 195 in
3 Q What did you tell him the 3 his declaration he's contradicting 194,
4 meaning was? 4 isn'the? -
5 A Exactly what Fve testified to 5 MS. FOLEY: Well, are you
6 heretoday. 6 representing that 10 her?
7 Q How did you -- you and I kind of 7 MR. JACORBS: I'm asking her.
8 teased i out with a high degree of 8 MS. FOLEY; Wall, there's
9  specificity. What did you tell SCO's 9 nothing in here that connecls this to
10 counsel about what you meant by that 10 this. This refers In this attidavit
11 paragraph? 11 1o Exhibit No. 374, 1 believe, and
12 A lassumed we teased it out with 12 there is no, nothing that shows that
13 the same degree of specificlty, if | 13 this arlicle that you've given as 94
14  understand what those words mean. 14 is the same thing he's tatking aboul.
15 My understanding Is — let me 15 MR. JACOBS: Why don't you look
16  rephrase thet. 16 at paragraph 4, just so you and | are
17 Chris Stone told me that they 17 clear, of his declaration.
18 were going 1o drop this littte bomb shell 18 MS. FOLEY: And in paragraph 4
10  on SCO and they were going to do it onthe | 19 it say SCO lawyers speak, says
20 281h of May, because that was the day that |20 nothing.
21 SCO's numbers were coming oul. 21 MR. JACOBS: Right.
22 Q And that's what you conveyed 1o 22 MS. FOLEY: So youre
23 SCO's counsel in the lobby of the hotel? 123 representing to her that this is the
24 A Yes. 24 article that's referred o in here?
E Q You didn't use the word bomb 25 MA. JACOBS: Yes.
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Page 58 Page 60

1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara . :

2 Q Except paragraph 8, whichis a 2 MR. JACOBS: Are you going o

3 diflerent topic as you slarted 10 note. 3 Instruct her? .

4 A Yeah, that's correct, 4 MS._FOLEY: Yeah, I'm

5 Q Sowe'll set paragraph 9 aside. 5 instructing her not to answer.

6 I'm not going to ask you any quest)ons 6 MR. JACOBS: You wantto geta

7 sabout thal. 7 prolective order and we'll come back?

8 , So you see in paragraph 3 he 8 MS. FOLEY: Youdonthavea -

9 says, Mr. Heise says, "l spoke to Maureen 9 subpoena and | think R's beyond the
10  O'Gara on or around March 21, 2003, shodly } 10 scope. i you want {o tell me why you
11 after the compiaint was filed in the 11 think this is an appropriate queshon
12 instant action. The article is not an 12 we can consider it, but --

13 accurate reflection of the conversation.” 13 MR. JACOBS: It goesto

14 Do you see that? 14 accuracy.

15 A 1do. 15 MS. FOLEY: Bul you have -- what

18 - Q Hesays,in paragraph 4 16 do you need? You have the slatement,

17 - explained to Ms. O'Gara that I was not 17 you have the sworn statement in front

18 willing to delai the body of SCO’s clalms 18 of you. You want to ask her does she

19  in evidence in a telephone conversation 19 believe her asticle is accurate, ask

20 with a joumnalist, which is consistent with 20 her if she-will stand by her article.

21 1the Jact that Ms. O’'Gara entitled her 21 Q That's a good question. 1 think

22  aticle SCO's Lawyer Speak, Says No!hing 22 it's pretty similar to what [ said. Do you

23 Do you see thal? 23 Dbelisve your article is accurate?

24 MR. GONZALEZ: | objectlo the 24 A And my answer was golng to be,

25 scope of the question. 25 before you got into this discussion, }
Page591 . Page 61

1 O'Gara 1 'O'Gara

2 Q Andthen he says, "l never 2 stand by my article.

3  slated or implied in any way that 1 did nol 3 -Q - Soyou believe that Mr. Heise

4 want IBM o know what SCO's claims were.” | 4 did, in fact, say 1o you that SCO does not

5 Do you see that? 5 wanl 1BM to know what the subs!ance of
-6 A Yes. 6 SCO's claims are?

7 Q And you see in your arlicle 7 MS. FOLEY: Are you quoting --

8 where you wrolg, "But doesniwant IBMto | 8 sorry, | nead to catch up here.

9  know what they are™? 9 Q I'mrefetring to 194.

A Yes. 10 MS. FOLEY: Which line are we
Q Whois right here, you or 11 al? Are you reporting accurately what
Mr. Heise? 12 Mr. Helse said to you?
MS. FOLEY: Ail right. Now | 13 THE WITNESS: | am reporling
think that we're going to object to 14 accurately what Mr. Heise said to me.
the Yorm of the question right now. 15 Q Andin paragraph 5, he says, "I
i you want to ask her what she 16 stated 1o Ms. O'Gara that | had recelved
moant in the article and what she 17  numerous press Inqulties regarding the
believes and what she was repotling, 18 tawsuil and that | personally had not yet
that's fine, but to ask about what the 19 spoken to IBM regarding the claims.”
source’s opinion is or the correctness 20 And then in 6, "1 stated to
of the source’s opinion goes beyond 21 Ms. O'Gara that IBM's response might be o
both the scope and | don't befieve 22 file a motion 1o dismiss rather than
that you've got, | don't think that 23 enswering the claims, but 1 did not believe
we've received a counter-subpoena from {24  a motion to dismiss would prevail.”
you, have we? 25 And then In 7, "1 expfained to
i ]
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Page 62 Page 64
1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara
2 Ms. O'Gara that Sun Micro Systems had 2 marked for ldentification.)
3 purchaged a ditferent type of ficonse that 3 . A Why does the print keep getting
4 1BM hadand that SCO had concluded that Sun| 4 littler and littller?
5  Micro Systems was not In breach of that 5 MR. JACOBS: |seem to beshya
6 license. | did not say that SCO was giving 6 copy of this one.
7 Sun Micro Systems a hall pass on 1P 7 MR. GONZALEZ: Maybe | can just
8 tampering. | never stated, I never said 8 look at it and give it back lo you.
9  1hall had not read the other licensing g MR. JACOBS: Yes.
10 UNIX agreements.” 10 Q Sothis is-an e-mait te you
11 Do you ses that In this 11 dated May 30, 2005, Exhibil 196, produced
12 declaration? 12 under SCO 1647696 to 697.
13 A Jsawit, 13 Do you see that?
14 Q  And then in your article you 14 A ldon't see adateonit.
15.  wenl onfo write, "At the time, and this 15 Q Right al the top.
16 was a wegk ago, he had spent more time 16 A Oh,thereit is, okay.
17 talking to us than to IBM that there had 17 Q Andihe subject is, "I need you
18  been no contact. He tigures IBM's strategy 18 tosendajab Pd's way.”
19 will be to go for a dismissal on the 19 A Okay.
20 grounds that what he’s charged IBM with so 20 QDo you see that?
21 far are, is not a cause of action and are 23 A Ubhuh.
22  conglusions, not facts. He seems 22 Q Whois PJ?
23 relatively unperturbed af the prospect. He 23 A Pdisthe purporied author of
24  also gavs Sun a hall pass on IP tampering 24 the Groklaw site.
25 calling it clean as a whistie’ becauvss it 25 Q Whatis the Groklaw site?
Page 63 Page 65
1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara
2 paid all that monsy once upon a time for 2 A Htis awebsite thet foliows the
3 UNIX. As for everybody else, well he 3 SCO case —1should say cases maybe but.
4  hadn't golten around to reading thek 4 Q Did you have a view in March of
5  agreements yel.” 5 2005 about whether PJ or the Groklaw site
] Do you see that? 6 was areliable source of information on the
7 A Yes, 7  SCO litigation?
8- Q  And do you stand by your story? 8 A Yes.
9 A 1stand by my story. 9 Q What was your view?
{10 Q Youwere accurately reporting in 10 A it was not reliable.
11 your story what Mr. Heise saidtoyou? . |11 Q  And what was the basis for that?
12 - A Yes : 12 A Itis a propaganda site.
13 Q And 1o the extent that his 13 Q Propaganda in what sense?
14 declaration disclaims what you reported In {14 . A It's unbalanced,
15 your story, his declaration is Incorrect? 15 Q In contrast 1o what you believe
16 MS. FOLEY: Object lo the form 16 you were doing?
17 of the question. I'm going 1o direct 17 A in contrast to what anybody is
18 the witness not to answer that 18 doing.
19 question. 19 Q  But more particularly your
20 Q  Are you going 1o follow your 20 reporting?
21  counsel's instruction? 21 A $suppose you conld compare it
22 A That's why she’s here. 22 tomyreporting.
123 Q Now let's ook at what we’li 23 Q Andin comparison you felt you
24 mark as 196. 24 were balanced or more bafanced compared to
is (Whereupon, Exhibit 196 was 25 her reporting?
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Page 66 Page 68
1 -O'Gara 1 O'Gara
2 A She’s not reporting. That's not 2 Groklaw about the SCO v. IBM suit.™
3  reporiing. Reporting hastodo withfacts. | 3 Do you see that?
4 Sheis writing a piece. it's an editorial 4 A Ub-huh,
5 oreditorializing. : 5 Q Whatis a harodin?
6 Q And that was the view you held 6 A | suppose we could look it up in
7  in March 20057 7  the diclionary.
8 A Yes : 8 Q Why did you use the word?
9 Q And then you did, in fact, write 9 A  Because it's accurate.
10 a story about PJ or Pamela Jones, didn't 10 Q Andin what way Is it accurate?
11 you? 11 A Have you read Groklaw?
12 A Yes. 12 Q I'msony,|getto ask the
13 - MR. JACOBS: let's lake a Jook 13  questions.
14 at thal. We'll mark this as 197. 14 A  Iif youread Groldaw, you would
15 (Whereupon, Exhibit 197 was 15 know that herodin is the right word. There
16 marked for Identification.} 18 is a difference between a good word and a
17 Q Soin 196, Stowell says in the 17 right word.
18 subjectline, "t nesd you 10 send a jab 18 Q See if you agree with this
19 PJ's way,” and that's March 30, 20057 19  definition - )
20 A Yes. 20 MR. GONZALEZ: Agaln. Oblection
21 Q And 197 is your May 910 13, 21 to scops.
22 2005 issue of Client Server News 2000, 22 Q  Hercdin, noun, a woman regarded
23 correct? 23 as scolding and vicious.
24 A Yesh. 24 A  Uh-huh. '
25 Q Andthe lead story Is "Who is 25 Q Is that a definition that
Page 67 Page 69
1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara
2 Pamela Jonss,” correci? 2 applies to your use of the word herodin?
3 A Yeah, 3 A ithinkit's accurate.
4 Q s there a causal refationship 4 Q Scolding and vicious?
5 belweoen Blake Stowell's e-mallfoyouand | 5 A Uh-huh '
6 the appearance of the story In Client 6 Q As you sit here today, do you
7 Server News 2000, May 9 to 13, 20057 7  have any regrels over printing 1977
8 A No. 8 A No. ,
‘9 Q You did it independenily, you 9 MR. GONZALEZ: Objection.
10 did the story on PJ -- 10 Q Do you have any regrets about
1 A ) have reason to do a'story on 11 finding the identity reporling information,
12 Pamela Jones that has nothing to do wilth | 12 personal information about Pamela Jones?
13 SCO. 13 A No.
14 Q Nothing to do with SCO asking 14 Q And again, "Who Is Pamela Jones”
15 youto? 15  bhad nothing o do, the.story on 197, your
16 A lthas nothing to do with SCO. 16 lestimony is that #t had 10 do with Blake
17 It's a maller of my own personal integrity. | 17  Stowsll's March 30, 2005 e-mail with the
18  She called it into question. 18  subject "I need you to send a jab PJ's
19 Q Thal's whal prompled this 19  way™?
20 aricle? {20 A | think he defines what lhe jab
21 A That's what prompted my interest |21  would be, which is something that we
22  infinding out who she was, yes. 22  ignored, you know.
23 Q  Andin that article you said, "A 23 Q The answer is?
24 few weeks ago, | went looking for the 24 A No.
25  elusive herodin who supposedly writes the {25 Q  Now let me show you a document
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. Page 70 Page 72
1 O'Gara _ » 1 O'Gara
2 ihat's been previously marked as a 2 Q And then on May 28th, Maureen
3  deposition exhibit. ' 3 calis my ce) phone at 6:30 am. She had
4 A 1don't need a number? 4 this from 1998. She asked if thers is any
5 Q it has one on it akkeady. it's 5 news since she is doing a story. 1 tel
6 part of the advanced technology we use in | 8  her no comment and fo calt Gary Schuster.
7  this practice. 7  And then May 28th Novell sends lettet to
8 So this document 1024 is a set 8 SCO challenging them 1o prove copyright and
9 of notes by Chris Stone that he ook at 9  palent ownership.
10 the, in 2003 to recount what he recalled of | 10 Do you see that?
11 his contacts about the SCO malter. 11 A Yes, .
12 MS. FOLEY: Actually, can you 12 Q Do you disagree with what Chris
13 just say that again? Are you 13 recounted here about his contacts wilh you?
14 representing to us what this is? 14 A Yes. .
15 MRA. JACOBS: Yes. 15 Q Can you step us through your
16 MS. FOLEY: So say it again. 16 disagreements?
17 _MR. JACOBS: -1024 s a set of 17 A Wheredol begin?
i8 notes by Chiis Stone that he recorded |18 Q" We, did you call him at 9 p.m.
19 n 2003 to recount what he recalled of |19 on May 27ih?
20 his contacts about the SCO matier. 20 A 1remeinber we spoke. it was the
21 A His what about the SCO malter? {21 evening. 1 dor't think it was 8 p.m,, but
22 Q Contacts. 22 i could be wrong about that.
23 A Contacts, okay. 23 Q When you -~ and did you call
24 Q1 And he talks about you -- 24  him?
25 A Onpage3. 25 A |don't remember.
Page71 | Page 73
1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara
2 Q Right, May 27, 9 p.m. 2 Q Did you begin the conversation
3 A Yesh. 3 by asking him aboul a lefter that Novell
4 Q  So just to get the chronolegy 4 planned to send to SCO?
5 right, May 28th, 2003 is the date of 5 A ldon't-no,!don't remember,
6 Exhibil 1080, the anlicle on the ownership 6 Q  Did you ask him what he had told
7 issue? , 7 the Wall Street Journal?
8 A Yesh, uh-huh. 8 A ldontremember. Idont even
9 Q  And so he Is recording here that 9 know what the context Is.
10 &t May 27 In the evening belore Maureen 10 Q  Didyou ask him about Hamachi,
11 O'Gara from Client Server News callsme out’ {11 with a capital H?
12  at my house. She statls quizzing me about 12 A - Wspossible. ) dont know.
13 aletter we are about to send to SCO. She i3 Q Do you rocall what your inlerest
14 wants to know what we told the Wal Street 14 insomething called Hamachi was?
15 Journal, what is Hamachi, what we plan 1o 15 A Hamachi is a code name.
16 do with SGO, why it was timed on this day, 16 Q For what?
17 is iBMinvolved, et cotera. 1relusedto, 17 A ldon't remember anymore.
18  answer any of her questions. | was qulle 18 Q For a software project?
19 amazed and disturbed at how much detail she |19 A Probably.
20 had. She asked me if she was hot or cold. 20 Q Did you ask him what Nove!l
21 }iold her no comment and 1o call Gary 21 planned to do with SCO?
22 Schuster lomorrow. She clearly has a 22 A This'is just
23  source somewhere in Novell. 23  mischaraclerization. That's okay.
24 Do you see that? 24 Q Waell, as you sit here today, do
25 A Uh-buh 25  you have a recollection of whether you
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Maureen O’Gara

Page 74 Page 76
1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara .
2  asked him what Novell planned to do with 2 before, we're not In the habit of thinking
-3 SCO? ’ 3 about the stock market, and it was he who
4 A | think that if we go back to 4 dtewmyattenﬁontotbefactmatmat
5  the original story, it says what they 5 day, the day that they were going 10 send
6 intended o do, and | got that from Stone. 6 the cease and desist lefter was timed to
7 Q Solitake it that the best 7 coincide with SCO’s earnings release.
8 recollection you have of your conversation 8 Q My question 1o you is slightly
g  with Stone in tosms of a source other than g differem, which is whether he volunteered
10 your memoly is 1o go 1o the story itself, 10 on the topic of timing, or as he says here
11 isthaet fight? 11 in his memo, you asked him about the
12 A Say that again? 12 timing.
137 Q Aside from your memory, what 13 A Andlam testifylng that he
14 you're looking al as you're answering my 14  volunieered it
15 questonsis a story, right? 15 Q He volunieers
16 A No-—youmean, are you doubting |16 A He volunteered the connection.
17  that 1 remember having the conversation 17 He suppl!ed the causality. ! didn't. He
18  with Chris and that he sald that the reason |18  did.
19  that they wese sending the lefter on that 19 Q lgotthat
20 day was because of the earnings, no. 20 What I'm asking you is, did you
21 Q I'msorry, thal wasn't my 21 ask him why and then he supplied the
22 question. 22 causality, or if you don't remember
23 A Okay. 23 thats --
24 Q said as you sit here today, do 24 A ldontremember.
25 you have a recollection of whether you 25 Q Okay.
Page 75 Page 77
1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara )
2  asked him what Novell planned fodowith | 2 Did you ask hiri about whether
3  SCO. Yousaid, | think, if we go back to 3 1BM was invoived in the lefter?
4 the original story, it says what they 4 A ldon't remember.
5 inlended to do, and | got thatfrom Stone. | 5 Q Did he refuse to answer some 01
6 And1 said, 1 take it from your answerthat | 6  your quesiions?
7 the best source you have othes than your 7 A Everybody always refuses 1o
8 memory of what happened in that 8 answer soms of my questions. .
9 conversation is the story liself. 9 Q And you're inferring from that
A  Well, thatisa distillation of 10 that in your conversation —
that conversation, yes. 11 A Hspossible.
Q And it's the only distilfation 12 Q Don't remember?
you have. You don't have any other place }13 A Don't remember.
to go 1o find out what happened in that . 14 Q D you use the expression hot
convarsation, do you? 15 or cold as in am 1 hot or cold with this
MS. FOLEY: Beside rom her 16 slory idea?
memory. 17 A That’s not logical.
A Yes, aside from my memory, yes. | 18 Q is that an expression you
Q Okay. 19 sometimes use?
Did you ask him -- 20 A No.
A  Does he-- 21 Q So your best recollection based
Q Did you ask him, Ms. O'Gara, did |22 on both your recollection of the
you ask him why the lefter to Novell was 23 conversation and your practice is that this
timed on this day? 24 is incoirec!, this reference lo use of hot
A My memory, as | explained 25

or cold?
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Page 78 Page 89
1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara
2 A The story is fully devetoped, 2 A Idon' know if it was
3  sir. Soit's not a matter of am$ hot or 3 panicularly 1998, but Yve had Chois' cell
4 cold about i. it's tuily developed. Sol 4 phone number for years. He was the head of
5 cen't answer your question because it's not] 5  the object menagement group.
6 logicak 6 Q And youhad developed a -
7 Q The question isn't logical? 7 reporter's relationship with him In that
8 A’ No, itisn't because ~ you 8 capacily?
9 know, it was like | was on a fishing 9 A We talked a lot.
10 expedition and all this really didnt 10. Q Did you have - you said you
11 happen. 11 \atked a lot. ] asked you if you developed
i2 "Q Forgive me, but it seems to me 12 areporier's relationship. Did you have a
13  that you could have elicited information 13" reporter's sousce relationship with Chris
14 and developed a story using the expression |14  Stone dallng back some years?
15 am 1 hot or cold, and my gqusstion fo you 15 A He was an executive of a
16 is-- 16 consortium through which much information
17 A Then he would have had to have 17 passed. )
18  given me the story, wouldn't he have? 1B Q Toyou?
19 Q Idont know. V'm just asking 19 A No, through which it passed.
20 you if in your conversalion with Chris 20 Vmiying to capture as much ol it as |
21 Stone onthe evening of May 28th you used |21 can, but not — 1 suppose the answer to the
22 the expression am | hot or cold. 22 questionisyes.
23 A ldon't know. 23 Q Andthe only reason § have to
24 Q Did he at any point say } have 24 askihis is 1o ask you whether you had a
25 nocommet? 25 personal friendship with Mr. Stone as
Page 79 Page 81
1 Q'Gara 1 O'Gara
2 A ldon't know. 2 opposed o a reporter's source
3 Q Did he tell you to call Gary 3 relationship.
4  Schuster? 4 A lhad, you know, alamb chop
5 A )don't kmow. 5 relatlonship with him,
6 Q And he says at the end of this 6 Q Which you've had with many
7  paragraph, "She clearly has a source 7 people? ‘ )
8 somewhere In Novell,” implying that it is 8 A - I have arolodex full of men
89 nolhe. 9  with whom I've had a lamb chop
10 - Somy question to you Is, did 10 relstionship, and they're all special to
11 you have a source other than Chris Stone in { 11 me, every single one of them,
12 Novell on the topic of Novell's intention’s 12 Q Thar's what thay beliave.
13  vis-a-vis SCO around May of 2063? 13 A Godlove them,
14 A No. 14 Q Did you ask him 1l there’s any
15 Q The next entry is May 28th, 15  news on the moming of May 28, did you ask
16  Maureen calls my cell phone at 6:30 a.m. 16 Mr. Stone if there's any news?
17 A ldoubtil. 17 A Sir, i do not do momings. I'm
18 Q Did you have -- and then he says 18 anlght person.
19 she had this, | think meaning the cell 19 Q So your best recoliection --
20 phone number, from 1998. 20 A Okay, that means | would have
21 Do you see that? 21 had to stay up all night and I don't think
22 A Yes. 22 that+ I mean, ] have spent many a night
123 Q isthat correct? 23 workdng over this kind of stuff. it's
24 A  Yes. 24  possible that | could have called him the
25 Q What was 19987 25  next morning 1o make sure that this thing
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Maureen O'Gara

. Page 82 Page 84
1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara
2 is accurate and that they were going to 2 Q  Youdidn't go to anybody else at
3 doliver it that day, which they did, okay? 3 SCO for comment, you went {o Blake Stowoll?
4 Q 'lndyoudon‘lhavea 4 - A Bloke Stowell is the gatekeeper,
5 recolisction of whather in the moming cail 5 altright? Andthisisaformalkindofa -
6 he said — 6 siluation. So it's best to slick lo the
7 A No, 1don't inow that there was 7 rules rather than jumping ahead. To go to
8 amorning call. 8  him first and ask for comment, it's
g Q . Right. 9  possible that | brought other people into
10 A But practices —~ you know, | 10 the conversation. .
11 like to be — the most imporiant thing is 11 Q  Youdon't recall?
12 o bs accurate, okay? And you fact check 12 A I'mnotone hundred percent on
13 and you double check and you make sure that { 13 it, sono.
14 they're actually going to go ahead and do 14 Q Andinthe conversaﬂon with
15 this. 15  Stowell you teslifled earlies that you
16 Q So you may have had a calt in 16 relayed o him whal Chris Stons had told
17  the moming? 17 you as par! of your efiort to elicit
i8 A [may have had a call. 18 comment from Stowell, correct?
19 Q And you don't recal the 19 A Saythatsgain?
20 substancs of that discussion? 20 Q  In the conversation with
21 A Well, since - it would have 21 Stowell, you testified earller that you
22 been about, you know, are they going o go 22 relayed to him what Chris Stone had told
23 ahead and do, did theéy do it, what's 23 you as parl of your effort 1o elicit
24  happening here, yes, because this thing 24  comment from Stowell?
25 went out at 8:00 in the morning, at least 25 A Right. it’s getting
. Page 83 Page 86
1 O'Gera 1 O'Gara
2 my copy did, somebody else's isearlier. | 2 complicated, isn't t? Yesis the answer
3 Q Now how long after your 3 tothat
4 conversation with Chris Stone did you have | 4 Q And in the conversation, in that
5 a conversation with -- let me start over 5  conversation with Stowell you told him what
6 again. 6 we've called the causality point, correct?
7 Wae covered this earller, but | 7 MS. FOLEY: Object to the torm
8 want tomake sure | have the facts correct. | 8 of the question. What do you mean by
9  You had a conversation with Blake Stowell | 9 causality point?
10 asking him for informalion related to the 10 Q Do you understand what ) mean by
11 story that appears in Exhibit 1080, the May |11  that?
12 28 Client Server News, right? 12 A Why don't we oblige the lady
13 A This, are we talking about 13 and- -
14- Novell to try and shoot down? 14 Q  In your conversation with
15 Q Yes. 15  Slowell, you told him that Chils Stone had
16 A He's a public relations person. 16 told you that Novell intentionally timed
17 s typical 1o get two sides of the story. |17  its ownership announcement to coinclde with
18  Jwent to him not for — what did you calf 18 SCO’s eamnings release, comrect?
19 A, information? 19 A  Yes.
20 Q Pm somry, t'm just rying to 20 Q  Did you ever iell anyone eise —
21 get-— 21 weli, ever is a big question -- Inthe time
22 A ) wentto him for comment. 22  period In question, the end of May, early
23 Q Comment, terrlfic. You went to 23  June 2003, did you tell anyone else that
24 Blake Slowell for comment? 24  Ihat’s what Chiis Stone sald to you?
25 A Hight. 25 A 1can't swear to the timo frame,
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Maureen O'Gara

Page 86 Page 88
1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara
2 butl believe I told Darl McBride. 1don't 2  destroyed, if t was'weeks later. .
3 think | had the convérsation with anybody | 3 Q Was it weeks later? :
4  else. - 4 A 1dontremember. My impression
5 Q What were the circumstances of - £ was It was In the samie time frame. As a
6 your conversation with Darl McBride on this | 8  matter of fact, | thought it was the 28th
7 poim? 7 ol May, but) could be wiong.
8 A As lremember, Blake went and 8 Q i itwas the 28th of May - -
g told Datl and Darl called me. 9 A I'msormry, the 27th of May, the
10 Q@ AndDar asked you what? 10 Tuesday. :
1 A lsthis what you told Blake 11 Q Wit was the 271h of May, you
12 Stowell ’ 12  stilt had your short phrase notes?
13 Q And what did you say to him? 13 A Yesh. - -
14 A  Yes. 14 Q And so when Dar) McBride called
16 Q  And specifically this was whal, 15 you up--
16  when Darl spoke 10 you? ' 16 A i he did In that thme, which
17 A The causality. 17  think he dig, but ) can’t swear o thal.
18 Q Thal Novell had intentionalty 18 Q  And you donl semember whether
19 timed its ownership announcement 1o 19  you wers looking at your short phrase noles
20 coincide with SCO's earnings release? 20 when he called you back for a confirmation?
21 A Yes. 21 A Rt was a sentence oy expression
22 Q So Darl McBiide called you up 22  that stuck In the mind at the time, so you
23 and you contirmed to Darl thal you had told 123 wouldn’l have really actually needed the
24  Stowell - 24 noles, bul yes, they would have been these.
25 A Right, and he repeated to me the 25 Q But your best recoliection is
Page B7 Poge 89
1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara
2  exact words, which | can't remember : 2 Dal calls you up, he's confirming exactly
3 anymore, that ] had told Blake that Chiis 3 what Stone says?
4  used and Blake accurately reported that 1o 4 A  Yeah
5  McBride who then came back to meto double | 5 Q Youdidn't go back to yous notes
6 check 6 atthat poini?
7 Q When McBride came back to you to 7 A No, Ididn'i have to.
8 double check, did you have your short 8 Q Solsimejust ask this, letme
9 phrase notes? 9 see if we've got a catalog of the various
10 - A No, because didn’t—no. | 10 communications around what Chris Stone said
11 wean, | remembered it then, byt U's what, 11 wyou
12 3 or 4 years iater now, so. 12 Number one, we have the arlicle
13 Q But your best rgcoliection is 13 itself, Exhibit 1080, correct?
14 whon Danl ca¥is you up for conversaiion, 14 A Yes.
15 you don't go back to your short phrase 15 Q Number two, we have your call to
16 notes? 16 Blake Stowsli?
17 A 1didnthave to. h was 17 A Yes.
18 only~ 18 Q Number three, we have the call
19 Q  I'mjust asking you yes or no. 19  from Dail McBride to you?
20 A No. 20 A Yes.
| 4] Q Didyou -- 21 Q And then, of course, we have the
22 A Ididn’t bave them. 22 original calt between you and Chris Stone?
23 Q  Why didnt you have them al thal 23 A  Yes. ’
124  point? 24 Q  Ase there any other documents
25 A Because they would have been 25 noles, eleclronic data or oral
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Page 92 ’

Page 90
1 O'Gara 1. O'Gara
2  communications that you can think of as you | 2 A No.
3 sil here today that, in which the substance 3 Q H you had a financial inlerest
. 4 of Chris Stone’s statement to you about the 4 in a company you were reporting on, would
5 reason tor the timing of Novell's ownership 5 il be your practice to discloss that? =
6 announcement was set foith? 6 A It's become fashionable in the
7 A Why don't we repeat that 7 iasttwo years for people to do that, but |
8 question. 8 didn't, ] wouldn't and | probably wouldn't
9 Q Okay. 9 even know it } had a financial interest
10 So the question is, what are all 10 because ] don't Jook at I, you mow, it's
11 the places where the substance of Chris |11 sort of like blind trust.
12  Stone's slatement 10 you about liming are 12 Q Isitactually a blind trust?
13 set forth, and the catalog is your 13 A No,it's not actually, but it
14  recollection of what Chris said to you, 14  might as well be.
15 your communicallon to Blake Stowell, the 15 Q You don't actually know what
16 call from Darl McBride and the substance of |18  companies your investment --
17  Exhibit 1080, your May 286th, 2003 Client 17 A 1have absolutely o ides, and {
18 Server News? 18.  have all the imopened maii to prove it, al}
19 MR. GONZALEZ: Objection. 19  those statements, right, that come all the
20 THE WITNESS: Why are wa 20 time, they're not opened, none of them. |
23 objecting? 21 have no idea.
22 MR. GONZALEZ: Oneol things he |22 Q Do you have any personal
23 said is your recollection, and that's 23 relationships aside from a lamb chop
24 difterent from the communication 24 reporter's source relationship with anyone
25 liselt. I there are catalog 25 at SCO?
Page 93 Page 93
1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara
2 communications, i should be all 2 A No.
3 communications. That's all. it's 3 Q BM?
4 just a legal technicality. 4 A No. Can anybody have a real
5 A Keeping in mind that legal 5 relationship with IBM?
6 technicality, the answer is no. 6 Q  Novell?
7 Q No, there's nothing else? 7 A No. :
8 A There's nothing else. 8 MR. JACOBS: No further
9 Q Do you have a rule at G2 about 9 guestions. ‘
10 disclosure of any financial interests you 10 MH. GONZALEZ: i you don't
11 have in companies you report on? 11 mind, why don't we take a 5 minute
12 A Wetrynotto. 12 break, and partly because 1 want to
13 Q You try not to have a tinancial 13 see the exhibit which 1 couldn’t
14  interest? 14 review.
15 A Right. it's not a good idea, 15 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We're going
16 Q And do you, in fact, have a 16 off the record. The time is 1:25.
17 financial interest today in SCO? 17 (Recess taken 1:25 p.m.)
18 A No. 18 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We are now
19 Q Novell? 19 back on the record. The limsa is now
20 A No. 20 1:35.
21 Q iBM? 21
22 A No. 22 EXAMINATION BY
23 Q Did you in the late spring of 23 MR. GONZALEZ:
24 2003 have a financial ierest in any of 24 Q Ms.O'Gara, 'd like 1o ask you
25 those companies? 25  justa couple of follow up questions
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Maureen O'Gara

Pagé 24 Page 96
1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara
2 following up on the conversation you've 2 Stone had sald thal, and that's what makes
3 been having with Mr. Jacobs and -- 3 R slickin my mind so vividly.
4 A And it's been a charming 4 Q And when you say they started
5 conversation, Mr. Jacobs. 5 griifing you, who are you referring to?
6 Q Andthefirstoneis in 6 A Aslrecall, it was —well,
7  reference o Exhibit 1024 where — 7  Stowell, he came through the phone at me,
8 A Wait a minutle. Walt a minute. 8 andl remember talking to McBride then. |
8 Oh,is thatthe 9 mean McBride is usually, usually stayed out
10 Q If's the alleged recap by 10 of stuff, and the fact that he hed been
11 Mr. Stone of his contacts related to the 11 involved at all was unusual.
12 ltigation of the case. 12 Q Justto further -~
13 A Okay. 13 A And they wanted, you know, the
14 Q And do you recall that 14 exact words and all of that, which | had at
15  Mr. Jacobs showed you a couple of entrles {15 the time, but don't have now.
16 in Exhibit 102472 16 Q And just to clarify, when you
17 A Yes. 17  say that Mr. Stowell came through the
18 Q  That purporied 1o be Mr. Stone's 18  phone, whal do you mean by Ihat? Can you
19  record of his conversalions with you onthe |19  elaborale a liitle bit?
20 evening of May 27th and the morming of May | 20 A How canl best describe 1?7 You
21  2Bth, 2003, Is that correct? 21  know, i's ke be sat up and took nolice
22 A Yes. 22  axi, you know, was repealedly — you know,
23 Q And Mr. Jacobs asked you about 23 he asked me any number of times what had
24  some of the detalls that Mr. Stone 24 exacily happened. He had more sensitivity
25  apparently set forth in this recount? 25 tothe thing than! did.
Page 95 Page 97
1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara
2 A Yes. 2 Q Did you get the impression that
3 Q  And do you recall that you did 3 he was surpiised or shacked, or what would
4 not have any particular recollection one 4  be the adjeclive?
5 way or the other about some of the details, 5 A Yeah, both of them would be, }
& for example, the time of the call in the 6 think, accurate.
7  evening, who called whom, whether or not 7 Q Okay.
8  Mr. Stone referred you to Gary Schuster, 8 A It waa their level of interest,
9 those sorls of delails, do you recall again 9  you know, in the thing.
10 not having a specific recollection one way 10 Q Okay. B
11 or the other about those details? 11 And do you recall speakmg with
12 A Yes. 12 Mr. Jacobs a fittle while ago about this
i3 Q  So my question Jor you is, S0 i3 concept of causality?
14 how is it that you do recall the comment by 14 A  Yes.
15 Mr. Stone that we've been focusing on, 15 Q Which 1 think both of you wers
16 namsly the liming of Novell's announcement 16 using as a shorthand for the relationship
17 with SCO's earming call? 17 between the announcement by Novell and the
18 A Because SCO made such a big deal 18 eatnings called by SCO, Is that correct?
18 about il 19 A VYes.
20 Q And what do you mean by SCO made |20 Q And so my question for you is,
21  abig deal oul of N7 21 when you think of this concept of
22 A  Well, whilelcalledintoget a 22 causalily, what do you have in mind as
23  staternent from SCO, Y'm used to asking the 23 being the cause and the effect as you
24 questions and, you kitow, they turned sround { 24  undersiood it?
25 and started grilling me after | satd that 25 A Aright Yo recap, my
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Page 58 Page 100
i O'Gara 1 O'Gara
2 underslanding is that — well, let me 2 fime it, i was your recollection that they
3 rephrase thal. 1's not my understanding. 3  wanted o time it so that it would bappen
4 What happened was that Novell 4 at the same lime SCO reported its eamings?
5 put out a statement saying that it owned 5 MR. GONZALEZ:  Objection.
6 UNIDC §t it owned UNIX, then SCO didn't 6 Mischaratterizes her prior testimony.
7 have a leg to stand on, and the reason that | 7 A Right.
B they were doing it parlicularly on thal day 8 MR. JACOBS: No further -
9 wasto impact the slock. 9 questions.
10 Q And when you say that Novell 10 A Right, | object.
11 wanted 1o make a statement that it owned 11 Q ¥'m somy, | thought you said
12 UNIX, do you mean that it wanted to make a {12  right, 1 was right.
13 statement thal it owned the UNIX 13 A No, right, { object. That's not
14 copyrighls? 14 rght
15 A Rhowned UNIX, yes, the 15  Q Wadll let's go over it again. .
16  copyrights and owned UNIX, and that SCO |16 What Is your best recoliection
17. didn't. 17  of whal Mr. Stone specifically sald about
18 MR. GONZALEZ: | have nothing 18  why Novell was Issuing the ownership
19 further. Thank you. 19 statement on the day it was Issulng it?
20 20 A 1t was because it was the day
21 EXAMINATION BY 21 that they were bringing out thelr numbers.
22 MRA.JACOBS: 22 Q Thelr earnings repori?
23 Q Do you have any notes of your 23 A _Right.
24 - conversalion with Mr. Stowell that you were |24 Q  And that's your best
25 justrecounting? 25  recolleclion of what he sald to you?
) Page 99 Page 101 |
1 O'Gara 11 O'Gara
2 A No. 2 A Right
3 Q How about with Mr. McBride? 3 Q And that's all he said to you on
4 A No. 4  that lopic?
5 Q Andjustto make suretherecord | 5 A And-
6 is clear about this, when you said this is 6 MR. GONZALEZ: Objection. Asked
- 7 what happened, that's a litile differert 7 and answeied.
8 from what Mr. Stone told you, right? 8 A The object of the game was 1o
9 A No. He told me that that was 9 impact. Sornry. There's no other loglc.
10 going to happen, and | put il that way 10 Q  Again, I'm trying 1o get this
11 because it is what happened. i1 distinction between logic and what he said.
{12 Q You dont know what happenedto [12 You can have your view. 'm not fighling
13 SCO's stock price? 13 your view of what the logic is. | just
14 A No. 14 need lo know what your testimony is, what
15 Q Youdon't know whether the -- 15  Mr. Stone said.
16 A  imean, no. 16 A Be led me 1o undersiand that
17 Q Around that time you don't know? |17 thal was the reason.
18 A Yeah, I have no idea 18 Q What was the reason?
19 Q You don't know whether it, in 19 A Toimpact SCO's stock.
20 tact, had what you understand 1o be the 20 Q But your best recollection of
21 _ desired effect? : 21  what he said is that the substance of it
22 A No. 22 was we're liming our ownership statement 1o
23 Q  And what Mr. Stone specifically 23  be reloased on the same day as SCO's
24  said was, not that Novell wanted to depress |24  earnings announcement?
E‘f the slock price, but that they wanted 1o 25 A Yes.
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Page 102 Page 108
1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara
2 MR. JACOBS: No further 2 A Thatis comrect.
3 guestions. 3 Q  Including the chortle that you
4 MR. GONZALEZ fhaveoneortwo | 4 testifled earller aboul?
5 more follow-ups, if you don't mind. - 5 A Yes.
6 8 MR. GONZALEZ: Thank you.
7  EXAMINATION BY 7 Nothing further.
8 MR..GONZALEZ: 8 ’
9 Q Ms. Jacobs, you don't recall -- 9 EXAMINATION BY
10 A No,I'msorry. 10 MR.JACOBS:
11 Q Ms.O'Gara -- 11 Q  And just lo be clear, because
12 MR. JACOBS: Or lamb chop. 12 you're giving differsnt answers to the two
13 THE WITNESS: Right, as the case |13  of us and | have to reconcile them --
14 may be. 14 MS. FOLEY: Object to that.
15 Q Is itfair to say you don' 15 Q  -- he conveyed this through the
16 recall the specific words that Mr. Stone 16 words that linked the iiming of the
17 used when he talked about the causality as | 17 ownership statement to the timing of the
18 you've been saying? 18  esarnings release?
‘19 A Right 19 A I'mirying to listen very
20 Q Butis it clear in your mind 20 caretully to what you're saying. Could you
21 that he conveyed to you this notion of a 21 say that again?
22 causality? 22 Q Sure.
23 A Yes. 23 He conveyed this through the
24 Q  And specifically that he 24 words that linked the timing of the
25  conveyed to you that the reason for the 25 ownership statement to the timing of the
Page 103 Page 105
1 O'Gara 1 O'Gara
2 tming of Novell's announcement was to 2 earnings release?
3 impact or as you sakd earlier to upset the 3 A Yes, I beliove the answer to
4  price of SCO’s stock? 4  that questlon is yes, If 1 understand the
5 A Yes 5 way you're using the English langnago.
6 Q And this conversation took place 8 He t0ld me that they were
7 during the phone, | believe you said 7 releasing it on the day. He pointed outto |
8 earlier? B8 me that that day was the day that they were
9 A I'm sorry? 1 9 goingto release their eamings. He drew a
10 Q  This conversation took place via 10 Yne between those two events.
111 the telephone? 11 MR. JACOBS: Thank you.
12 " A Yes, yes. 12 MR. GONZALEZ: | have nothing
13 Q  Sothat if he conveyed this 13 further.
14 concepl 1o you, it would have been done 14 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: This marks
15 thiough the words that were coming through 15 the end of tape number one. We are
16 the telephone, not through gesture or 16 going off the record. The time is
17 gesticulation? 17 1:46.
18 A That's correct. 18 (Time noled 1:46 p.m.)
19 MR. GONZALEZ: § have nothing 19
20 further. 20
21 A Exceptihat faugh. 21 MAUREEN O'GARA
22 Q  Oh, well. 22 Subscribed and sworn {o
|23 So to clarity, it would be 123 beforemsthis  day
24  through words or through some audible sound {124 of , 2007.
25 that he was making? 25
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CERTIFICATE
STATE OF NEW YORK )
. 88
COUNTY OF NEW YORK)

1, Joan Urzia, a Registered
Professional Reporter and Notary
Public within and for the Stale of New York,
do hereby certify:

That MAUREEN O'GARA, the
witness whose deposition is hereinbefore set
forth, was duly swom by me and that such
deposition is a true record of the testimony
given by the witness.

} further centify that § am
not related to any of the parlies to this
action by blood or marriage, and that | am
in no way interested in the outcome of this
matter.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have
hereunto sel my hand this 23rd day of
March 2007. .

JOAN URZIA
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